Agricultural training in Denmark 2013



Travel to Farm

Danish Young Farmers' Clubs Danish Agriculture and Food Council





Dear foreign trainees to Denmark

From 2007, a cooperation is introduced, where agricultural organizations in Denmark work closer together in order to make the best possible training stays for young farmers from other countries, who want to make a shorter or longer stay on a Danish farm through Travel to Farm

The partners are:

Danish Agriculture and Food Council LandboUngdom Travel to Farm

Apart from the contact to Travel to Farm, which will continue unchanged, the individual foreign trainee in Denmark will have a contact person at the regional office of the Young Farmer's Clubs, who he shall meet and can contact in case of any questions or problems.

Our intention is still to make quality stays for young farmers from the whole world, assuring good host farms, transparent conditions and easy access to information or help, if needed.

We wish you heartily welcome in Denmark!

Agricultural Training

in Denmark

2013

Contents

What is Travel to Farm?	5
General information - 2013	7
Free time	10
Holidays	10
Wages and tax	11
Contract and probation period	12
Work permit	12
Health and accident Insurance:	13
Registration at the Municipality in Denmark:	14
Administration fee	15
Drivers licence:	15
Further advice on your stay in Denmark:	16
Study tour	18
Facts about Denmark	19
Country Representatives	21

What is Travel to Farm?

Travel to Farm was founded in 1912 under the name Landøkonomisk RejseBureau. The name was changed to Travel to Farm on the 1st of January 2006.

Travel to Farm arranges practical training stays within agriculture for young foreign farmers in Denmark and for young Danish farmers in other countries. We have approximately 40 different co-operation partners in more than 30 different countries located in all parts of the world.

In 2012 Travel to Farm placed 99 young farmers in Denmark and has sent 88 young Danes abroad.

Travel to Farm has its office in the secretariat of Danish Agriculture and Food Council (Farmers organization) in Copenhagen.

Our member organizations are:

Danish Agriculture and Food Council The Danish Young Farmer's Clubs Danish Agricultural Colleges The Danish Association of Agronomists



The address of our office is:

Travel to Farm

Axelborg Axeltorv 3 DK-1609 Copenhagen V Denmark

Tel.: +45 33 39 46 40 Fax: +45 33 39 46 49 E-mail: t2f@t2f.dk www.t2f.dk

Your contacts:

Mr. Hans-Henrik Jørgensen - hhj@t2f.dk Mr. Mette Storgaard - mcs@t2f.dk Ms. Anne-Mette Olsen – aol@t2f.dk Ms. Anne Aagaard Nielsen - ani@t2f.dk

General information - 2013

Qualifications

Modern farming needs competent and skilled help. In order to join our programme you must

- be 19-29 years old
- speak good English and/or German
- be a student or post graduate from an agricultural college, agricultural technical school or agricultural university
- Proved experience of full-time practical farm work in the requested type of farm (min. 6 months)
- preferably have a driving licence for car as well as for tractor
- be prepared to stay for 9-12 months (stays shorter than 4 months are not accepted)
- be unmarried

Our programme is a "learning by doing" programme which will be very useful for young people who expect to become independent farmers themselves.

Types of placement

- Husbandry animals: Dairy cattle, sows and slaughter hogs.
- Field crops (12 months experience and tractor drivers' licence required). Few placements (0-5).
- Vegetable production. Limited number of placements (10-15/year in all).

• Mink and horses. Very few placements (0-5 per year).

Training period in Denmark



The best time of the year to start your training period in Denmark is springtime, March or April. A training period of 9-12



months will enable you to follow all types of work during the seasons. Denmark is nice and green in the summer, with beautiful light nights in the months of

May, June and July.

Some trainees may want to come during winter, i.e. November-February. This is only possible if you want to work with animal husbandry, dairy cows or pig production. You should be aware that the number of placements is limited in this period. The contract is made for 8 months, since the salary changes to second year payment. If you wish to prolong, and you have made an agreement with you host, Travel to Farm will send you a new contract and extend you insurance.

Family life

Most farms in Denmark (more than 80 per cent) do not have employees. Only 1,100 farms have more than two workers, approximately 10,000 farms employ just one or two persons.

A little less than half of the trainees will have all meals with their host family and live as a member of the family. Students who want to stay with the family should mention this specifically in their application. Full Brood cannot be guaranteed

Your host farmer

All our host farms are approved to have trainees by the regional young farmer's club, who has been at the farm and checked that work and living conditions are okay. In case there are problems at the training site, it will be a representative from the local young farmers club, who will come on a visit.

Your host farmer will inform the local police, tax authorities, etc. of your stay. Once you are in Denmark, you can always ask your host farmer for advice. He will receive an instruction letter from Travel to Farm before your arrival.

If you do the best you can, show interest in agriculture and ask questions, your stay in Denmark is likely to become a success!

Local contact in Regional Young Farmer's Club:

From October 2007, all trainees will have a local contact at the regional Young Farmer's Club's office. After a period of 2-3 months in Denmark, you will be invited for a meeting with other trainees at the local YFC, and meet the advisors in the region. The E-mail of the Local contact will be written on the placement sheet which you receive before arrival to Denmark. Your host farmer can also help you to get into contact with the local farm youth adviser.

<u>Note:</u> If you have any problems that you cannot sort out with your host family, you should contact the Regional Young Farmer's Clubs office or Travel to Farm.

You are not allowed to leave the farm without a specific agreement with your host farmer as well as Travel to Farm.

Conditions:

Working hours:

General working hours for trainees placed by Travel to Farm is 37 hours per week.

During peak seasons such as sowing and harvest there will usually be extra work. As a rule you will get extra time off in compensation for any hours exceeding 37 hours a week. The host farmer can choose to pay you extra for overtime work instead of giving you extra time off.

Trainees work alongside the host farmer and possible Danish workers. No student should work longer hours than the farmer himself. Trainees who want to work with cattle or pigs must be prepared to work on Saturdays and Sundays. All trainees must



be prepared to work on Saturdays and possibly Sundays during peak seasons.

Free time

As a general rule, trainees will have at least one day off per weekend. On farms with livestock, however, where trainees usually work every second weekend and have two days off every other week.

Holidays

Trainees will get 2½ days holidays per month, or 15 days during a 6 months period. The holidays must be held during the training period. Host farmer and trainee should agree on a suitable time. When counting holidays one week holiday is equal to 6 holidays as Saturday counts a working day.

The trainee has additionally 6 days off, of which one is 24 December. The additional holidays can, if not held, be paid out with DKK 477,00 per day.

Wages and tax

The monthly salary before taxes is DKK 8.090,16 plus meals. At some farms you will cook some or all of your own meals. You will get additional money to buy your food.

The host farm shall provide a room for the trainee, including heat, electricity, water, bed sheets and towels. The price for this room is fixed to DKK 1.500/month, which is deducted from your salary.

Tax deduction is approximately 48 per cent; the exact percentage varies slightly from municipality to municipality. Taxes are also deducted from the value of free meals, which is estimated to DKK 2,250 in 2013.

If you can prove that you have a permanent residence in your home country and at the same time have a temporary job in Denmark, the tax rules state that you do not have to pay tax of the value of food.

Payment for extra work hours during peak seasons is DKK 96,74,- per hour, for the first two hours per day, before tax. If you have more than two overtime hours in one day, the payment will be DKK 116,3 per hour. Remember that the host

farmer can choose to give you free time (1:1) instead of overtime payment.

Holiday allowance is 13,5 %, which will be paid 1st of May the following year or when leaving Denmark permanently.

Please bear in mind that the purpose of staying as a trainee in a foreign country is not to earn money, but to learn and to see life and customs in another country. You can often earn more money in your home country than you will be able to earn the first 6 months in a foreign country.

Contract and probation period

A contract will be made on your training stay. The first three months are a probation period. During this period the farmer as well as the trainee can decide to cancel with two weeks notice. After the probation period there is one months notice.

If the farmer claims lack of practical experience or language knowledge and the complaints are found reasonable by Travel to Farm or our representative, the training stay will be cancelled, and the trainee will be sent home. In case of other problems we shall usually try to find a new placement.

If the host farmer and the trainee agree, the contract can be prolonged up to maximum 18 months.

Work permit

Trainees from the Nordic countries: You do not need a work permit.



Trainees from EU member states and Switzerland:

You must have a residence permit in order to be registered with the local Danish municipality. The Application is handed out at the administration in Denmark. Your host family will help you to do so immediately after you have arrived in Denmark.

Trainees from all other countries: You must have a work permit. Our co-operation partner in your country will help you to obtain the permit. This normally lasts up to 12 weeks.

Important: Please note that you must get the work permit stamped in your passport by the Danish Embassy or consulate in your home country. Thus, you are not allowed to travel to Denmark and start your training period until you have obtained the work permit.

The permit is given for a specific employer, so you are not allowed to work anywhere else on this permit. If a change of host farm is necessary you will have to apply for a new permit, which might take another 8-12 weeks. You are not allowed to work at the new place before you have the new permit.

Health and accident Insurance:

General rules: Please ask the Travel to Farm office or the Regional Young Farmer'c Clubs in case you have questions regarding insurance and public fealth care system.



Accidents:

The host farmers will insure the trainees the whole period against **accidents during work hours.**

Health insurance:

The trainee is covered by the Danish public health insurance from the day of arrival (when you have been at the municipality and registered) meaning that visit to doctors and hospitalization is free.

Medicine is paid partly by trainee. Dental care is also only covered partly by the public health system.

Additional insurance:

In addition to the public health insurance the trainee will have to pay for an insurance through Travel to Farm covering repatriation (home transportation in case of severe illness or death), visit by a family member in case of hospitalization as well as accidents during his/her free time. The price is DKK 84,- per month for European trainees, and DKK 103,- per month for overseas trainees, which must be paid for the whole period together with the administration fee.

Trainees should not draw any insurance in their home country, as they in any case will have the insurances provided by Travel to Farm!

Registration at the Municipality in Denmark:

When you arrive to your host farm in Denmark, the farmer will take you to the local authorities to get you registered. At this visit you must show your work permit and any papers relevant

for your tax payment, like proof that you are a student or have a permanent address in your home country.

Administration fee

In order to cover the costs of our administrative work we charge an administration fee from all incoming trainees.

For the year 2013 the fees are as follows:

Stays up to 6 months: DKK 2,000 Stays more than 6 months: DKK 3,000

You will also have to pay your own travel costs from Copenhagen to your host farm.

The total amount will be deducted from your first two month's salary in Denmark according to decision of Travel to Farm.

In addition to the administration fee, you will have to pay yourself the additional insurance described above. (DKK 84/month or DDK 103/month)

Drivers licence:

Generally, we request the trainees to have a driver's licence. A car driver's licence (category B) allows you to drive a tractor in the public road in Denmark.

Trainees from the Nordic countries and EU member states: Nordic or EU Driver's licence is valid unlimited.

Trainees all other countries: All trainees must bring an **international driver's licence** written in Latin letters, valid for the entire training period.

If a trainee does not hold an international driving licence on the date of arrival to Denmark, he must cover the costs of changing his national licence to a Danish one himself **or** getting an officially stamped translation. These costs can amount to more than DKK 1,000.

Note: Trainees from some countries in South America, Asia and Africa will be asked to take a driving test in order to obtain Danish driving licence. There will be a fee for this.

Further advice on your stay in Denmark:

The staff in Travel to Farm will do their best to assure you the best possible training conditions during your stay in Denmark. But please remember that your benefit of the stay first of all **depends on yourself**! A positive attitude to the work, to your host family and to the Danish people you meet is your most important contribution to the programme.

During your stay you will see that many things done differently from the way they are done in home country. It is therefore important to remember that you have gone abroad to experience a new life style. You are a new member of the host family and should therefore try to fit into their lifestyle as good as possible instead of trying to change it. The Danish host families generally like it, when trainees, show interest in agriculture and in the Danish society in general. Therefore, ask questions if you want to know more.

Many trainees may get a culture shock when they come to a new country to live. After having built up high expectations you are suddenly facing reality.

It is not unusual to go through a period when you feel down and a little depressed. This period is likely to come after 2-8 weeks in your new country, but it could come anytime. If you feel depressed or homesick it will often help you to talk to your host family about it and/or to another trainee, maybe from your own country, which is placed on a farm not too far from you.

A period like this will usually pass in a few weeks. If it goes on for long, however, you should write or phone us at Travel to Farm.

We send a "Points to discuss"- sheet to your host family, before your arrival. The subjects listed on the sheet should be discussed with your host family within the first week after your arrival in Denmark. This will help answering many of your questions on practical matters and hopefully help to avoid misunderstandings between you and your host family. It contents points about meal times, laundry, smoking, working hours, mailing system etc.

Study tour

Each year Travel to Farm arranges a 3-4 days study tour to Copenhagen and the island of Sjælland. The study tour usually takes place in June. The programme will be sent out to all trainees in Denmark 4-6 weeks before the tour starts.

The study tour includes both technical visits and tourist sights in Copenhagen and on the island of Sjælland. Thus, you may get the opportunity to see other farms than your host farm or visit a slaughterhouse. You will also visit the Axelborg Building in Copenhagen, where agricultural organisations have their head office. This is also where Travel to Farm is situated.

The programme also includes visits to The Viking Ship Museum in the city of Roskilde, the Carlsberg Brewery and The Tivoli Gardens, the famous amusement park in the heart of Copenhagen.

We recommend that you participate in this exciting tour, which also gives you a unique opportunity of meeting trainees from many other countries.

Please note that information in this booklet may be subject to changes.





Facts about Denmark

Area: 43,000 km² (16,640 sq.mi.)

Population: 5.5 million. Average density about 119 per km².

Largest cities:

Copenhagen metropolitan area, 1,2 million inhabitants. Aarhus, 238,000 Odense, 158,000 Aalborg, 122,000

Royal family:

Queen Margrethe II, born April 16, 1940 Prince Consort: Prince Henrik, born June 11, 1934 Crown Prince Frederik, born May 26, 1968 Crown Princess Mary, born 5 February 1972 Prince Christian, born 15 October 2005 Princess Isabella, born 21 April 2007 Prince Vincent and Princess Josephine (twins!), born 8 January 2011 Prince Joachim, born June 7, 1969

Parliament:

"Folketinget", the Danish Parliament, is situated on Christiansborg Castle in Copenhagen. It has one chamber with 179 members, including two from the Faeroe Islands and two from Greenland.

During recent years, 8 parties have been represented in "Folketinget". The largest parties are the Social Democrats, the Liberals, The Danish Folk Party, the Conservatives and the Socialist Party.

Climate:

Denmark has a fairly mild, temperate climate. Average temperature the whole year is 7.9 degrees Celsius. Coldest month with 0.0 degrees Celsius (January and February) and warmest month with 15.7 degrees Celsius (August). Average rainfall the whole year is 712 mm.

Country Representatives

Australia

IRE (International Rural Exchange) PO Box 92 Narembeen Western Australia 6369 Australia Tel. +61 8 9681 1552 info@ire.org.au

Stablemate 1 Bullridge Road East Kurrajong NSW 2758 Tel. +61 2 45879770 info@stablemate.net.au

Austria

Österreich Landjugend Wienerstr. 64 3100 St. Pölten Tel. + 43 2742 259 6305 andrea.musser@lk-noe.at

Belgium

Groene Kring Waversibaan 99 3050 Oud Heverlee Tel. 1647 9998 info@groenekring.be

Brazil

Sindicato dos Trabalhadores Rurais Rua Getulio Varges 931 98 200 000 Ibirubà Tel. +55 54 324 1533

Eloi Jung Rua Decio Scheid 41 979000-000 Cerro Largo-RS tel. 0055 33 59 29 57 ecjung@via-rs.net

Caep-Brazil Av. Higienópolis, 70 Center Irene Isabel - Sala 94 CEP. 86020-907 Londrina PR Tel/fax +43 3323-4815 info@caep.com.br

Bulgaria Agricultural College 78, Dunav boul. Plovdiv 4003 Tel. 32 650 386 intervuzk@infotop-bg.com

Canada

IRE Canada Box 111, Elgin MB Canada ROK 0T0 Tel. +1 204 769 2448 irecanada@yahoo.com

Estonia

Harju Farmers Asa 1 75501, Harju Saku 3400 Saku Tel. + 372 6042 577 renateetkl@hot.ee

Finland

CIMO PO Box 343 Hakaniemenkatu 2 00 351 Helsinki Tel. +358 10 80 67 67 cimoinfo@cimo.fi

France

SESAME 6, rue de la Rochefaucauld 75009 Paris Tel. 1 4054 0708 sesa-internet.fr

Germany

Schorlemer Stiftung des Deutschen Bauernverbandes e.V. Referat für Internationalen Praktikantenaustausch In der Wehrhecke 1 c 53125 Bonn Tel. + 49 228 - 9265721 -22 a.bauch@bauernverband.de

Hungary

University of West Hungary 9200 Mosonmagyaróvár Vár-street 2 Tel. 96 566 656 kylugyo@mtk.nyme.hu

University of Kaposvar Faculty of Animal Science 7400 Kaposvár Guba S.u. 36-40 Tel. + 36 82 314 155 ext. 285 kovacsr@atk.kaposvar.pate.hu

Iceland

Bændasamtök Islands Bændahöllin, Box 7080 107 Reykjavík Tel. + 354 563 0300 jo@bondi.is

Ireland

Macra Na Feirme General Headquarters Irish Farm Centre Bluebell Dublin 12 Tel. + 353 1 450 8000 macra@macra.ie

Teagasc Rural Development Division Athenry Co. Galway Tel. +353 9 184 5200 bofarrell@athenry.teagasc.ie Equipeople Ltd. Garryhinch Portarlington, Co. Laois Tel.+ 353 0502-43195 info@equipeoplestaff.com

Japan

JAEC (The Japan Agricultural Exchange Council) # 6 Meiji-Seimei-Kamata-Ekimae Bldg. 39-2, Kamata 5-Chome Ota-Ku, Tokyo 144-0052 Tel. +81 3 5703 0251

Latvia

Latvian Young Farmers Club Dobeles iela 41A Jelgava, LV-3001 Tel. + 371 738 1346 jzk@jzk.apollo.lv

Latvia University of Agriculture Liela Iela 2 LV-3001 Jelgava Tel. +371 63027168 jzk@jzk.lv

Agroverde-baltic Miera iela 33-21 Riga agroverdebaltics@apollo.lv

Lithuania

Lithuanian Farmers' Union Donelaico 2

3000 Kaunas Tel. +370 37 229 537 lus@zur.lt

New Zealand RENZ (Rural Exchange New Zealand) 851 Poyntz Road RD1, Rangiora North Canterbury Tel. + 64 3312 5181 geoff@ruralexchange.co.nz

The Netherlands

Agency for Agricultural Exchange and Study Tours P.O. Box 9225 1800 GE Alkmaar Tel. +31 7258 96 144 info@uitwisseling.nl

Norway Atlantis Ungdomsutveksling

Rådhusgata 4 0151 Oslo Tel. +47 22 47 71 70 post@atlantis-u.no

Poland

NOT-SITR 00-950 Warszawa 1 Czackiego 3/5 Tel. +48 22 826 21 76 Agriculrual University 28 Wojska Polskiego st. 60 637 Poznan tel. +48 61 848 76 70 University of Technology an Agriculture Faculty of Agriculture Bernardynska 6 85-029 Bydgoszcz Tel/fax +48 52 374 95 30 teresa@atr.bydgoszcz.pl

Romania

Agro-verde 535500 Gheorgeni Str. Miron Chistea Nr. 9/A/10 Tel.Fax. +40 266 361 453 varadigy@email.ro

Russia

Russian Academy of Management and Agrobusiness Orenburgskaya str. 15 b 11 1621 Moscow Tel. +7 095 700 06 68 ayus@comail.ru

Agrointerservice 31 a, Pryanishnikov str. 127550 Moscow tel. +7 095 976 36 66

Sweden

JUF

Boks 2022 641 02 Katrineholm Tel. 150 530 90 juf@juf.se

Switzerland

Agroimpuls Laurstrasse 10 5200 Brugg Tel. 56 462 51 44 info@agroimpuls.ch

Thailand

Dept. of Vocational Education Ministry of Education Bangkok 10300 Tel. + 66 2282 7060 or 2282 7175

Ukraine

National University of Life and environmental Sciences Office 2 Geroyiv Oborony str. 15 Kiev - 41 03041 Ukraine Tel. +380 44 267 8832 iaasnau@nauu.kiev.ua

Zhitomir Region Farmers' Association 16 Khlebnaya st. Apt. 11 Zhitomir 10030 Tel. +38 0412 424509 leonzt@ukr.net Sumy State Agrarian University 160, Kirov Sumy, 40021 Tel. +380 542 213 472 natalie_job@bigmir.net

Kharkiv State Technical University of Agriculture 44 Artema St. 61002 Kharkiv Tel. +38 057 700 38 88 khstua@lin.com.ua

International Information Centre 3a str. Gorkogo, Kiev, Ukraine, tel: (+38044) 2347882 email: iic@i.com.ua

Union Forum Post to: P.O.5327 Lviv-10; 79010 Ukraine tel/fax: + 380 322 726934 email: info@union-forum.org

Uman State Agrarian University Instytutska Str. 1, Uman 20305 Cherkassy region Ukraine email: agrouman@um.ck.ua

United States of America

MAST International

R395 VoTech Building 1954 Buford Ave. St. Paul, MN 55108-6197 Tel. + 1 612 624 3740 sjones@tc.umn.edu

EI (Experience International) PO Box 680 Everson, WA 98247 Tel. + 1 360 966 4131 ei@expint.org

The Ohio Program 700 Ackerman Road, Suite 360 Columbus, OH 43202-2328 Tel. +1 614 292 7720 chrisman.1@osu.edu

Venezuela

Planta Plumrose Latinoamericana, C.A.Carretera Nacional Cagua-Villa de Cura Zona Industrial Cagua, Estado AraguaApdo. 62296-Caracas 1060-A Tel. +58 244 396 3090

Your own notes

Your own notes



Travel to Farm Axeltorv 3 DK-1609 Copenhagen V Denmark

Tel.: +45 33 39 46 40 Fax: +45 33 39 46 49 e-mail: t2f@t2f.dk www.t2f.dk

Your contacts:

Mr. Hans-Henrik Jørgensen Ms. Mette Storgaard Ms. Anne Aagaard Nielsen Ms. Anne-Mette Olsen